
Portfolio Holder Decisions

Resources Portfolio and Health and Community 
Engagement Portfolio

1.  Larkholme Grasslands Environmental Scheme (Pages 1 - 4)

Report of the Service Director People and Places.

2.  To agree a consultation process to introduce a Public Space 
Protection Order (PSPO) to prevent members of the public from 
feeding seagulls

(Pages 5 - 12)

Report of the Service Director Health and Wellbeing.

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

The portfolio holder will make a decision on this item after seven days have elapsed 
(including the date of publication). 
 

Report of: Portfolio Holder Date of publication 

Mark Billington, 
Service Director 

People and Places 

Councillor Alan Vincent, 
Resources Portfolio Holder  

13 July 2017 

 

Larkholme Grasslands Environmental Scheme 

 
 
1. Purpose of report 

 
 1.1 

 
To seek approval to develop the Larkholme Grasslands Environmental 
scheme to detailed design phase using a preferred consultant. 
 

2. Outcomes 
 

 2.1 
 

Detailed design will be provided for the key structural elements of the 
scheme which forms an important part of the Rossall Coastal Defence 
scheme. This will include design of bridges, promenade entrance features, 
roadside entrance features and carved narrative text and images. 
 

3. Recommendations 
 

 3.1 
 

That approval is given to undertake detailed design of the key structural 
features for the Larkholme Grasslands scheme as part of the Rossall Coast 
Defence scheme. 
 

 3.2 That approval is given by the Resources Portfolio Holder for the Head of 
Engineering Services to enter into an agreement with Broadbent Studios 
to undertake the detailed design work. 
 

 3.3 That approval is given by the Resources Portfolio Holder to allow for the 
appointment of consultants under the exemptions to Contract Procedures 
contained within the Financial Regulations and Financial Procedure Rules 
on the grounds that the goods, works or services are of a specialised 
nature carried out by only one or a limited number of firms with no 
reasonably satisfactory alternatives available. 
 
 
 

Portfolio Holder Report 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



4. Background 
 

 4.1 
 

The Larkholme Grasslands Environmental scheme is an important part of 
the Rossall Coastal Defence Scheme both for the creation of improved 
environmental habitat but also for amenity and landscape improvements.  
The structural elements of the scheme are especially important as they 
provide interpretation of the grasslands and enable access across the site.  
 

 4.2 The Larkholme Grasslands Environmental scheme is fully funded through 
Grant in Aid (GiA) funding from DEFRA combined with monies from the 
Coastal Communities fund (CCF), Environment Agency environmental 
improvement grants and community funding from Fleetwood Town Council 
and Regenda housing. Future maintenance of the scheme has been 
considered and all elements are to be designed to minimise future revenue 
implications.  
 

 4.3 Broadbent Studios have worked with the council on a number of related 
public artwork structure projects including the Cleveleys Mythic Coast 
project and Rossall Observation Tower. Broadbent Studios were appointed 
in September 2016 to provide initial concept design work and consultation, 
building on their previous involvement. The detailed design work proposed 
is a development of this work. 
 

 4.4 The timetable for development of the detailed design, (allowing for the main 
contractor Balfour Beatty’s programme) is relatively short and requires a 
prompt start if the main works are not to be delayed. It was therefore 
agreed at the Project Management Board that Broadbent Studios should 
be appointed to undertake the work as they already have significant direct 
knowledge of the site and were best placed to ensure timely delivery. Of 
key importance is the development of the foundation designs for the 
bridges which could, if delayed, affect the overall delivery programme.  
 

5. Key issues and proposals 
 

 5.1 
 

In order for the construction of the environmental features to align with the 
main Rossall Coastal Defence improvement works it is necessary for a 
prompt start to deliver the detailed design in good time. In order to achieve 
this it is necessary to appoint an overseeing designer who has the 
necessary experience and competence to deliver the works. Broadbent 
Studios meet these requirements and have provided a quotation against a 
prepared draft scope of works. A contract has been prepared through the 
New Engineering Conditions of Contract 3, Professional Service Contract 
Option A and a letter of intent issued. It is proposed to directly appoint 
Broadbent Studios. 
 

 5.2 Exemption from Council’s standing orders is therefore sought as this is a 
specialist area of work with limited suppliers. The initial cost of works to 
prepare the detailed design is estimated at £24,200.  
 
 
 

Page 2



 5.3 The costs to prepare the detailed design works and the subsequent 
construction are fully funded through external grants. Once the detailed 
design works are completed and approved by the Council they will be 
passed to the main contractor Balfour Beatty for construction. 
 

 5.4 The Capital costs for design and construction of the environmental works 
are reflected in the council’s capital programme. 
   

6. Delegated functions 
 

 6.1 The matters referred to in this report are considered under the following 
executive function delegated to the Resources Portfolio Holder (as set out 
in Part 3 of the council’s constitution): 
 
“To consider departures from Rules relating to financial and contractual 
matters if appropriate.”  
 

 

Financial and legal implications 

Finance 

The estimated cost of developing the detailed design is 
£24,200 as detailed in the quotation from Broadbent 
Studios. Construction works would be undertaken by 
Balfour Beatty as part of the competitively tendered Rossall 
Coastal Defence scheme. 
 
All capital works are to be externally funded. The impact on 
ongoing revenue budgets will be kept to a minimum and any 
remaining implications will be contained within existing 
budgets. 

Legal 

A contract will need to be entered into with Broadbent 
Studios under New Engineering Conditions of Contract 3 
Professional Service Contract Option A.  
 

 
Other risks/implications: checklist 

 
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with 
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist officers 
on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There are no 
significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues marked with a 
x. 
 

risks/implications  / x  risks/implications  / x 

community safety x  asset management  

equality and diversity x  climate change x 

sustainability x  data protection x 

health and safety x  

Page 3



 
 

report author telephone no. email date 

Carl Green 01523 887215 carl.green@wyre.gov.uk 23.06.2017 

 
 

List of background papers: 

name of document date where available for inspection 

None   

 
 
List of appendices 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
arm/ph/re/cr/17/0007cg1 

Page 4

mailto:carl.green@wyre.gov.uk


 
 

The portfolio holder will make a decision on this item after seven days have elapsed 
(including the date of publication). 
 

Report of: Portfolio Holder Date of publication 

Mark Broadhurst, 
Director of Health and 

Wellbeing 

Cllr Vivien Taylor, 
Health and Community 
Engagement Portfolio 

Holder 

13 July 2017 

 

To agree a consultation process to introduce a Public Space Protection Order 
(PSPO) to prevent members of the public from feeding seagulls. 

 

 
 
1. Purpose of report 

 
 1.1 

 
To approve a consultation process, relating to the introduction of a new 
PSPO to prevent members of the public feeding seagulls in identified 
areas. 
 

2. Outcomes 
 

 2.1 
 
 
2.2 
 
 

A consultation on whether to introduce a PSPO to prevent members of the 
public from feeding seagulls is undertaken. 
 
The outcome of the consultation will help inform the Council whether to 
proceed with the introduction of the PSPO.  

3. Recommendation 
 

 3.1 
 

That a consultation process be undertaken to consult on a potential new 
offence to be included on a PSPO, preventing members of the public from 
feeding seagulls in identified areas.    
 

4. Background 
 

 4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Spaces Protection Orders are designed to stop individuals or groups 
committing anti-social behaviour in a public space. They form part of the 
Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014. Councils can issue a 
Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) after consultation with the Police, 
Police and Crime Commissioner and other relevant bodies. The Council 
must also consult whatever community representatives they think 
appropriate. This could relate to a specific group, for instance, a residents 

Portfolio Holder Report 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 

association, or an individual or group of individuals, for instance, regular 
users of a park. They can be enforced by Police Officers, Police 
Community Support Officers, and officers authorised by the council. The 
maximum duration of a PSPO is three years, but they can last for shorter 
periods of time where appropriate (Home Office guidance 2014). 
 
During the breeding season for seagulls, but particularly during the months 
of July and August, reports of attacks on members of the public increase. 
Brought about by the current year’s breeding cycle, the adult birds take it 
upon themselves to protect their young, by swooping down upon anyone 
they perceive as a threat. Between 2010 and 2016 Wyre Council received 
49 reports of incidents of this nature.  
 
During the course of 2016 Wyre Council ran repeated social media 
campaigns asking residents and members of the public to keep their 
rubbish sealed and not to feed seagulls. The campaign attracted significant 
interest from the public, indicating that the problem is more widespread 
than the actual reports suggest. Unfortunately the practice of feeding the 
seagulls still continues, which emboldens the seagulls and helps support 
the growing seagull population. 
 
Research has shown that seagulls are having larger broods than they 
did traditionally, probably due to the lack of predators and the advantages 
of food close by. Seagulls often live for between 25-30 years and this, 
combined with growing brood size, have caused an increase in the seagull 
population. 
 
By reducing the availability of food, it is hoped that the seagull population 
can be limited to current levels or even reduced.  Over time this would 
reduce the number of attacks by the birds on members of the public. 
Therefore the report seeks approval to consult on the introduction of a 
PSPO to prevent the feeding of seagulls encompassing both Fleetwood 
Cleveleys and Knott End see appendix 1.  
 

5. Key issues and proposals 
 

 5.1 It is recognised that the additional power and some of the changes 
proposed which will form part of this consultation have the potential to be 
controversial. However the uncontrolled seagull population growth 
continues to be a major concern for our residents and equally frustrating 
for the Council.  
 

 5.2 The Council would rather officer time and resources be spent on other 
service areas, and a more responsible attitude to the feeding of seagulls 
be promoted. 
 

 5.3 In order to introduce a PSPO the Council has to be satisfied on reasonable 
grounds that the following conditions are met: that activities carried on in a 
public place have had a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in 
the locality and that the effect of those activities is likely to be persistent or 
continuing in nature and justifies the restrictions imposed.  

Page 6



 
This test is considered to be met for the following reasons:  
 

 Reported physical attacks on humans in Wyre by seagulls is 
increasing – 49 between 2010 and 2016. 

 There is evidence of some members of the public feeding the 
seagulls. 

 Widespread social media interest in Wyre’s 2016 campaign asking 
the public to keep rubbish sealed and not to feed seagulls indicates 
that the problem is under-reported. 

 Noise pollution by gulls can also cause problems for visitors and 
residents and at its most severe can disrupt sleep. Changes in their 
environment have taught these birds to increase their activity 
throughout the night and research suggests that the noise from 
seagulls is moderate during courtship but greatest once chicks have 
hatched. 

 Seagull excrement contains high levels of bacteria, much higher 
than treated human waste. There is reason to believe that the 
excrement from the ever increasing seagull population may also 
have an impact on local bathing water quality. In order to reduce 
that impact, Wyre Council are already asking residents and visitors 
not to feed the seagulls as part of a Love my Beach campaign. 

 Property damage caused by seagulls should also be considered.  
This can range from blocked gutters caused by the fouling which 
can lead to water ingress into the building, to damaged rooftops 
where insulation surrounding pipes and air conditioning systems 
have been severely damaged and even reports of lead being ripped 
up. These hidden costs are difficult to evaluate. 

 
 5.4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 
5.6 

The consultation process will be conducted in accordance with Cabinet 
Office Guidelines. In order to ensure that Parish/Town Councils and 
collective groups/organisations can consider these proposals within their 
meeting cycle the consultation period will be conducted over a minimum of 
6-8 weeks. The proposals will also be circulated to a wide variety of 
interested parties including the Police Crime Commissioner, Lancashire 
County Council, Friends of the Parks Groups and the Royal Society for the 
Protection of Birds. It will also be open to individual members of the public 
to respond.  Consultation responses will be promoted through the council’s 
on-line portal, however paper copies will be made available at public 
buildings and on request. The consultation will be further publicised 
through the web, media and social media outlets. 
 
It is anticipated the consultation will take place as soon as possible. The 
results of the consultation exercise will be used as the basis for a further 
report by the Portfolio Holder. 
 
If the PSPO is adopted it is intended that the Council would follow the 
practice of other Local Authorities and the introduction of this new power 
would be preceded by a substantial educational campaign and the use of 
an informal approach certainly in the first few months of operation. 
 

Page 7



 5.7 
 
 
5.8 
 
 
 
5.9 
 
 
 
5.10 
 
 
 
 

The Council has already agreed in April 2015 that an offence under the 
ASB Regulations, would result in a penalty to the value of £100. 
 
The consultation process will offer the public the opportunity to affirm their 
support for important legislation to control anti-social behaviour arising out 
of the irresponsible feeding of seagulls. 
 
The maximum duration of a PSPO is three years but they can last for 
shorter periods of time where appropriate.  At any point before expiry, the 
Council can extend a PSPO by up to three years. 
 
It is envisaged that the new offence will be enforced on a complaint led 
model, identifying hot spots where the offence is taking place. 
 
Under the Wildlife and Countryside Act of 1981 all birds are protected 
including seagulls. There are some situations where species may be 
controlled or culled but this is unlikely in a domestic seagull situation and 
therefore the introduction of a PSPO to prevent the excessive feeding of 
seagulls is seen as a proportionate response to the current situation in 
Wyre. 
 

6. Delegated functions 
 

 6.1 
 

The matters relating to seagulls referred to in this report are considered 
under the following Executive Function delegated to the Health and 
Community Engagement Portfolio Holder (as set out in Part 3 of the 
Council’s Constitution): “To consider issues relating to environmental 
health functions in accordance with the Council’s policy in relation to the 
Council’s powers and duties under the provisions of the Public Health Acts 
and other statutory provisions as relate to public health and hygiene, food, 
animal welfare, public safety, home safety and shops except functions 
listed in Schedule 1 of the Local Authorities (Functions and 
Responsibilities) England Regulations 2000.”  
 

 

Financial and legal implications 

Finance 
The cost of the consultation process will be met from within 
existing environmental and community safety budgets. 

Legal 

The consultation process for the proposed PSPO will be 
conducted in accordance Cabinet Office Guidelines and the 
Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2014. 
 
The proposed PSPOs would introduce new controls for 
preventing the feeding of seagulls. A legal process would 
need to be followed with the appropriate consultation and 
these views considered by the Portfolio Holder before any 
decision is reached. -. 

 
  

Page 8



Other risks/implications: checklist 
 
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with 
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist officers 
on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There are no 
significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues marked with a 
x. 
 

risks/implications  / x  risks/implications  / x 

community safety   asset management  

equality and diversity x  climate change x 

Sustainability   data protection x 

health and safety x  

 
 

report author telephone no. email date 

Neil Greenwood 01253 887410 Neil.greenwood@wyre.gov.uk 19/06/2017 

 
 

List of background papers: 

name of document date where available for inspection 

None   

 
 
List of appendices 
 

1. Map of proposed PSPO area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
arm/ph/hc/cr/17/0007ng1 

Page 9



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©
Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Wyre Council Licence Number: 100018720 2017

Seagull PSPO Fleetwood

¯

Page 10

lmilnes
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1(a)

lmilnes_1
Typewritten Text
arm/ph/hc/cr/17/0007ng1 Appendix 1(a)



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of 
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © 
Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may 
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Wyre Council Licence Number:  100018720 2017

Seagull PSPO Knott-End-On-Sea

¯

P
age 11

lmilnes_2
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1 (b)

lmilnes_3
Typewritten Text
arm/ph/hc/cr/17/0007ng1 Appendix 1(b)



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of 
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © 
Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may 
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Wyre Council Licence Number:  100018720 2017

Seagull PSPO Thornton Cleveleys

¯

P
age 12

lmilnes_4
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1(c)

lmilnes_5
Typewritten Text
arm/ph/hc/cr/17/0007ng1 Appendix 1(c)


	Agenda
	1 Larkholme Grasslands Environmental Scheme
	2 To agree a consultation process to introduce a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) to prevent members of the public from feeding seagulls



